
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
November 24, 2014 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Lt. Colonel Allison Miller, Alabama Air National Guard 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Proclamation – Small Business Saturday, November 29, 2014 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports  
9. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
10. Approval of Minutes – October 27, 2014 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

11. Ordinance Number 2524-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2425 To 
Correct A Legal Description For The Property Annexed To The City Of Vestavia Hills 
Located At 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; Lila P. Williams, Owner. 

12. Ordinance Number 2546 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 37, 
Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William H. Jenkins, Owner 

13. Ordinance Number 2541 – Rezoning – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 37, Altadena Forest 
Estates, 2nd Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; William 
H. Jenkins, Owner 

14. Ordinance Number 2547 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; 
Eric And Meredith Mann, Owners 

15. Ordinance Number 2542 – Rezoning – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Eric And Meredith Mann, Owners 

16. Ordinance Number 2548 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; Lot 12, 
Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner 

17. Ordinance Number 2543 – Rezoning – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; Lot 12, Gresham Woods 
Subdivision; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Nicholas 
Elkhoury, Owner 



18. Ordinance Number 2539 – Rezoning – 3136 Ranger Road; Lots 7 & 8, Block 6, Glass 3rd 
Addition To New Merkle, Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills R-9 
(Planned Residential); Patricia Hanna, Owner 

19. Ordinance Number 2540 – Rezoning – 3125 Blue Lake Drive, Lot 31, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential District) To Vestavia Hills O-
1 (Office District), Lorraine Hollis, Owner 

New Business  

20. Resolution Number 4655 - A Resolution Accepting Dedication Of The Street Known As 
Devereaux Circle 

21. Resolution Number 4661 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Deed To Dedicate Sewer Easements At The Patchwork Farms 
PUD 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

22. Resolution Number 4662 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A 
FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant And Execute And Deliver An Agreement For 
Said FMA Funds 

23. Resolution Number 4663 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Schoel Consulting Engineers For Consulting Services For A 
FMA Floodplain Management Plan 

24. Citizens Comments  
25. Motion For Adjournment 



                                     PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS,  small businesses are the economic backbone and a critical 
          component for many municipalities throughout Alabama; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Alabama’s  local  governments support small,  local busi- 
          nesses that create jobs, boost local economy and preserve 
          neighborhoods; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Alabama’s  local  governments  also understand the impor- 
          tance of small businesses  to the  welfare and  future of 
          their communities and residents; and  
 
WHEREAS,  according to the United States,  Small  Business Adminis- 
          tration, as  of 2012,  there were 28 million small  busi- 
          nesses in the United States that  made up 99.7 percent of 
          U.S. firms and  provided 64 percent of new private-sector 
          jobs; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Small  Business  Saturday  was  first observed  on Novem- 
          ber 27, 2010 as a  counterpart of Black  Friday and Cyber 
          Monday to encourage holiday shoppers  to patronize small, 
          local brick and mortar businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS,  advocacy groups, public organizations and private organi- 
          zations  across the  country have  endorsed the  Saturday 
          after Thanksgiving as Small Business Saturday; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Alberto  C. Zaragoza, Jr. by  virtue of the  au- 
          thority  vested  in me as Mayor  of the City of  Vestavia 
          Hills  in  the  State  of  Alabama,  do  hereby  proclaim 
          November 29, 2014 as 
          
                                         SMALL  BUSINESS  SATURDAY 
 
          and encourage our  residents to support  small businesses 
          and merchants this day and throughout the year. 

 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and 
caused the Seal of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama to be affixed this 
the 24th day of November, 
2014. 

 
 
 
                                   ___________________________ 
                                   Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 10, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor Pro-Tem called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce  
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief  
      Marvin Greene, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Taneisha Tucker, Library Director 
 
 Invocation was given by Taneisha Tucker followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
led by Boy Scout Nathaniel Ruben, Troop 1. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 
 

• Mr. Ammons introduced Nathaniel Ruben, Boy Scout Troop 1, who was 
attending to earn a merit badge. 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the Chamber was about to kickoff the annual “Holiday 
in the Hills” celebration.  Details of the scheduled events can be found on the 
Chamber’s website. 

• Mr. Ammons thanked everyone for the support in his campaign for Tax Collector.  
He stated that even though he didn’t win the election, the overall experience was 
good and he appreciated all the support from the community. 

 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 2 
 

 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
• Mr. Downes stated that one of the areas of emphasis from the City’s retreat last 

year was to concentrate extra energy in the Engineering Department.  He asked 
Mr. Davis to introduce the City’s newest employee.  Brian Davis introduced 
Lorrie Beth Kearley, the City’s newest professional engineer who will begin her 
employment on November 24.  He indicated that Ms. Kearley has a degree in 
aerospace engineering and comes to the City with a good bit of traffic engineering 
experience. 

• Mr. Downes stated that another priority was for quality development along the 31 
corridor.  He stated that he was happy to finally publically announce that Sprouts 
was going to locate in the new shopping area being constructed directly across 
Highway 31 from the new City Hall and should be opening in 2015. 

• Installation of the new pedestrian bridge in McCallum Park will close the public 
access to the park on Friday because of the heavy equipment needed to install it. 

• RFP’s were recently submitted to outsource the specialized maintenance of the 
City’s ballfields and will open on December 11. 

• The City recently obtained a grant from Representative Jack Williams for tourism 
which will be used at the grand opening of the new City Hall. 

• City Hall will be closed on November 11, 2014 in observance of Veterans Day. 
• The construction of the new City Hall is progressing on scheduled.  Structural 

steel was scheduled to arrive and the building should be going vertical very soon. 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Ammons stated that the Council has received six applications for the Park and 
Recreation Board vacancy and three for the Library Board.  The Council 
concurred to hold interviews on December 10, 2014. 

• Mr. Ammons announced that the McCallum and Royal Fields were dedicated 
recently at SHAC.  He thanked both families for their continued support of the 
Park and Recreation activities as well as the community. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the unaudited financial reports for the fiscal year 2014.  He 
read and explained the balances and indicated that these are the final balances prior to the 
audited reports. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of October 27, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of 
October 27, 2014 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was 
by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4647 
 
Resolution Number 4647 – A Resolution Vacating Right-Of-Way Known as 

Eastwood Circle 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4647 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the new City Hall was designed with Mayland Lane ROW 
being centered to a standard width.  This request vacates a certain portion to allow for 
buffering of the parking lot toward the residential across the street.  A map will dedicate 
some additional ROW behind City Hall at a later date. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4654 
 
Resolution Number 4654 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For A Police Motorcycle 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4654 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that bids were received for a new motorcycle for the Police 
Department.  The bids were reviewed and recommendation was made to purchase the 
lowest bid item. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 4 
 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4656 
 
Resolution Number 4656 - A Resolution Approving A Conceptual Master 

Development Plan For Patchwork Farms 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4656 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request is to approve a new conceptual master plan 
for the development of Patchwork Farms.  This is a stipulation from the purchase 
agreement.  He then introduced Doug Neil, Daniel Corporation. 
 
 Mr. Neil showed a PowerPoint presentation depicting the Master Conceptual 
Development Plan for Patchwork Farms.  He described the details in the drawings and 
answered questions from the Council and audience. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4657 
 
Resolution Number 4657 – A Resolution Approving Disclosure Controls And 

Procedures And Certain Related Matters 
  
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4657 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution is to keep the City in compliance with 
certain disclosure rules of the SEC. 
 
 Heyward Hosch, Maynard Cooper and Gale, explained the disclosure 
requirements from the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) which allows 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 5 
 

continued disclosures through audits.  He explained the reason for the Resolution and the 
details surrounding the terms of it. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4658 
 
Resolution Number 4658 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Street Repair And 

Resurfacing 
  
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4658 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that a bid was awarded more than 2 years ago to Good Hope 
for street resurfacing.  The City has terminated that existing contract and this Resolution 
will authorize him to execute one with Dunn Construction to finish out the terms of the 
existing bid.  He explained the details of the bid and that Dunn was the next lowest 
bidder. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the documents and concurred that this was 
within the terms of the existing bid. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Numbers 4659 and 4660 was by Mr. Sharp.  Second was by 
Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 6 
 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4659 
 
Resolution Number 4659 – A Resolution To Name The Street Vesthaven Circle 
  
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4659 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution clarifies and officially names the street as 
Vesthaven Circle.  He explained that various documents have the spelling different and 
the City’s E-9-1-1 system needed an official name.   
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4660 
 
Resolution Number 4660 – A Resolution To Name The Street Ridge Dell Circle 
  
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4660 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution clarifies and officially names the street as 
Ridge Dell Circle.  He explained that various documents have the spelling different and 
the City’s E-9-1-1 system needed an official name.   
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem, opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 7 
 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will 
be presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
November 24, 2014 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2524-A – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2425 
To Correct A Legal Description For The Property Annexed To The City Of 
Vestavia Hills Located At 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; Lila P. Williams, Owner. 

• Ordinance Number 2546 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 
37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William H. Jenkins, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2541 – Rezoning – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 37, Altadena 
Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills 
R-1; William H. Jenkins, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2547 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4624 Old Looney Mill 
Road; Eric And Meredith Mann, Owners 

• Ordinance Number 2542 – Rezoning – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; Rezone 
From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Eric And Meredith Mann, 
Owners 

• Ordinance Number 2548 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; 
Lot 12, Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2543 – Rezoning – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; Lot 12, Gresham 
Woods Subdivision; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; 
Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2539 – Rezoning – 3136 Ranger Road; Lots 7 & 8, Block 6, 
Glass 3rd Addition To New Merkle, Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia 
Hills R-9 (Planned Residential); Patricia Hanna, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2540 – Rezoning – 3125 Blue Lake Drive, Lot 31, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential District) To Vestavia 
Hills O-1 (Office District), Lorraine Hollis, Owner 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Mr. Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem stated that the Council needed to move into 
Executive Session for the purpose of purchase/sale of property for approximately 30 
minutes with no action to be taken after the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that was a legal reason for the Executive Session. 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 10, 2014, 

Page 8 
 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into executive session for the purchase/sale of property 

for an estimated 30 minutes was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
        motion carried. 
 
 The Council exited the Chambers at 6:10 PM.  At 6:40 PM, the Council entered 
the Council Chambers and the Mayor Pro-Tem called the meeting back to order. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:41 PM. 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2524-A 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2524-A 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2524 

CORRECTING A LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
ANNEXED TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND 
INCLUDE WITHIN THE CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY 
ALL TERRITORY NOW WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS 
AND ALSO CERTAIN OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO 
SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Lila P. Williams dated June 2, 

2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, on August 11, 2014, the Mayor and City Council adopted 

and approved Ordinance Number 2524 to annex said property into the City of Vestavia 

Hills. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality and that Ordinance Number 2524 be amended to accurately describe said 

property.  Said territory is described as follows: 

2429 Dolly Ridge Road  
Lila P. Williams 

 



Ordinance Number 2524-A 
Page 2 

 
A Portion of Lot 36, Rocky Ridge Estates as recorded in Map Book 28, 
Page 78, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
The Point of Beginning being the SW Corner of Lot 35 in said survey; 
thence run North along the West line of said Lot 35 for  a distance of 
289.04 feet to a crimped iron found on the South ROW of Dolly Ridge 
Road, having a 50.0 feet ROW; thence deflect 89 degrees 52’ to the left 
and run 48.39 feet along said ROW to a point, being the PC of a curve 
having a delta of 39 degrees 54’ and a radius of 130.58; thence deflect 19 
degrees 59’ 30” to the left and run 72.19 feet along said ROW to a point, 
being the PT of said curve; thence deflect 19 degrees 59’ 30” to the left 
and run 97.15 feet along said ROW to a point, said point being the PC of a 
curve having a delta of 39 dgrees 58’ and a radius of 137.5; thence deflect 
30 degrees 56’ 00” to the right and run along said ROW for a distance of 
9.80 feet to a capped rebar found L S 8759; thence deflect 83 degrees 35’ 
55” to the left and run 190.30 feet to a rebar found; thence deflect 84 
degrees 17’ 09: to the left and run 192.48 feet to a crimped pipe found, 
said point being the Point of Beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2524-A 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2524-A is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November, 2014, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2524-A 
Page 4 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2546 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2546 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of August, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3633 Dabney Drive 
Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector 

William Jenkins, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2546 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2546 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November, 2014, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2546 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2546 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2541 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2541 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 

(residential) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential):  

3633 Dabney Drive 
Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector 

William H. Jenkins, owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2541 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2541 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2541 
Page 3 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 9, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-1014-47 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3633 Dabney Dr. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: William H. Jenkins. 2643 Buttewoods Dr. Birmingham, 

AL 35242 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
8/11/14 and will complete the 90 day annexation on 11/24/14. Applicant is requesting 
the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 

 
 
 

Ordinance No 2541 - Exhibits



 2

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to approve Rezoning of 3633 Dabney Dr. from 
Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 

 

Ordinance No 2541 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2547 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2547 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of August, 2014, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4624 Old Looney Mill Road 
Eric and Meredith Mann, Owner(s) 

 
Being more particularly described as follows: 
 
A Parcel of Land situated In the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; Thence run North 
along the east line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 72 deg.44 min. 00 sec. and run in 
a Northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.44 feet to the point of 
beginning, said point of beginning being an Iron pin found; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run in a Southwesterly 



Ordinance Number 2547 
Page 2 

 
direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the right of 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 116 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run in a southeasterly 
direction along the northeast line of Lot 1-B of Martin's Resurvey as 
recorded in Map Book 110, Page 36, in the Office of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, for a distance of 218.54 feet to an iron pin set 
on the Northwest right of way of Five Oaks Lane, said right-of-way being 
40 feet wide; thence tum an angle to the left of 78 deg. 30 min. 26 sec. and 
run In a Northeasterly direction along the Northwest right-of-way of said 
Five Oaks Lane for a distance of 223.01 feet to an iron pin set at the 
intersection of Old Looney Mill Road and Five Oaks Lane, said Iron pin 
set being on a curve to the left having a central angle of 2 deg. 35 min. 20 
sec. and a radius of 431.66 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 deg. 
14 min. 36 sec. to the chord of said curve and run in a Northwesterly 
direction along the arc of said curve and also along the Southwest right-of-
way of Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 19.51 feet to an iron pin 
set; thence tum an angle to the left from the chord of last stated curve of 
10 deg. 54 min. 41 sec. and run In a Northwesterly direction along the 
Southwest line of said Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 167.03 feet 
to the point of beginning; being situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Less and except the following:  
 
A parcel of land situated in the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE comer of said 1/4-1/4 section, thence run north along 
the East line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 72 deg. 44 min. 00 sec. and run in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.34 feet to an iron pin found; 
thence tum an angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run In a 
Southwesterly direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to the point of 
beginning. said point of beginning being an Iron pin found. thence tum an 
angle to the right 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found, thence tum an 
angle to the left of 115 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run In a southeasterly 
direction for a distance of 42.33 feet to an iron pin set; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 80 deg. 39 min. 24 sec. and run In a Northeasterly 
direction for a distance of 126.45 feet to the point of beginning: being 
situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2547 
Page 3 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2547 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2547 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November, 2014, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2547 
Page 5 

 

 
 



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2547 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2542 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2542 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 

(residential) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential):  

4624 Old Looney Mill Road 
Eric and Meredith Mann, owner(s) 

 
Being more particularly described as follows: 
 
A Parcel of Land situated In the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; Thence run North 
along the east line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 72 deg.44 min. 00 sec. and run in 
a Northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.44 feet to the point of 
beginning, said point of beginning being an Iron pin found; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run in a Southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the right of 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 116 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run in a southeasterly 
direction along the northeast line of Lot 1-B of Martin's Resurvey as 
recorded in Map Book 110, Page 36, in the Office of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, for a distance of 218.54 feet to an iron pin set 
on the Northwest right of way of Five Oaks Lane, said right-of-way being 
40 feet wide; thence tum an angle to the left of 78 deg. 30 min. 26 sec. and 
run In a Northeasterly direction along the Northwest right-of-way of said 
Five Oaks Lane for a distance of 223.01 feet to an iron pin set at the 



Ordinance Number 2542 
Page 2 

intersection of Old Looney Mill Road and Five Oaks Lane, said Iron pin 
set being on a curve to the left having a central angle of 2 deg. 35 min. 20 
sec. and a radius of 431.66 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 deg. 
14 min. 36 sec. to the chord of said curve and run in a Northwesterly 
direction along the arc of said curve and also along the Southwest right-of-
way of Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 19.51 feet to an iron pin 
set; thence tum an angle to the left from the chord of last stated curve of 
10 deg. 54 min. 41 sec. and run In a Northwesterly direction along the 
Southwest line of said Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 167.03 feet 
to the point of beginning; being situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Less and except the following:  
 
A parcel of land situated in the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE comer of said 1/4-1/4 section, thence run north along 
the East line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 72 deg. 44 min. 00 sec. and run in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.34 feet to an iron pin found; 
thence tum an angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run In a 
Southwesterly direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to the point of 
beginning. said point of beginning being an Iron pin found. thence tum an 
angle to the right 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found, thence tum an 
angle to the left of 115 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run In a southeasterly 
direction for a distance of 42.33 feet to an iron pin set; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 80 deg. 39 min. 24 sec. and run In a Northeasterly 
direction for a distance of 126.45 feet to the point of beginning: being 
situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2542 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2542 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2542 
Page 4 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 9, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-1014-48 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4624 Old Looney Mill Rd. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Eric & Meredith Mann. 4624 Old Looney Mill Rd. 
Birmingham, AL 35243 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

8/11/14 and will complete the 90 day annexation on 11/24/14. Applicant is requesting 
the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2542 Exhibits



 2

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Rezoning of 4624 Old Looney Mill Rd. 
from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was 
by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 
 

 

Ordinance No. 2542 Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2548 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2548 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 11th day of August, 2014, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1512 Oak Leaf Trail 
Lot 12, Gresham Woods 

Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2548 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2548 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November, 2014, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2548 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance No. 2548 Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2548 Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2548 Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2548 Exhibits



Ordinance No. 2548 Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2543 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2543 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 

(residential) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential):  

1512 Oak Leaf Trail 
Lot 12, Gresham Woods Subdivision 

Nicholas Elkhoury, owner(s) 
 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2543 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2543 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2543 
Page 3 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 9, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-1014-50 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1512 Oak Leaf Trail 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Nicholas Elkhoury. 4124 Crosshaven Dr. Vestavia Hills, 
AL 35243 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

8/11/14 and will complete the 90 day annexation on 11/24/14. Applicant is requesting 
the compatible rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2543 Exhibits 



 2

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Rezoning of 1512 Oak Leaf Trail from 
Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 For The Purpose Of Annexation. Second was by Mr. 
Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Ordinance No. 2543 Exhibits 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2539 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) 

Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential):  

3136 Ranger Road 
Lots 7 & 8, Block 6, Glass 3rd Addition to New Merkle 

Patricia S. Hanna, owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2539 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2539 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2539 
Page 3 

 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date: OCTOBER 9, 2014 

• CASE: P-1014-45 

• REQUESTED ACTION:  Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3136 Ranger Rd. 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Patricia S. Hanna. 2300 Countryridge Dr. Vestavia Hills, 
AL 35243 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant seeks to rezone two lots in Cahaba Heights 
to an R-9 zoning. Lots will have 25' front and rear setbacks and a 5' side setback. 
Lots are already platted and undersized for the current R-4 zoning. Currently both lots 
are vacant. 

• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 
plan for medium density residential. 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation 

2. City Engineer Review: Engineering to review access and drainage 
requirements 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

1 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



 2

MOTION  Mr. Sharp made a motion to approve Rezoning of 3136 Ranger Rd from Vestavia 
Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of Residential Development. Second was by 
Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 
 

 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



P1014-45//28-15-1-7-19 
3136 Ranger Rd. 
Rezone from R-4 to R-9 
Patricia Hanna 	R-4 

P&Z Application 

Page 4 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working  days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

SS 

NAME: 	(Pci_t t-  t C 'I a_ 	6 Hay\ na— 	col   
rn 

7a. 

-0 

ADDRESS: 01300 CotArNtry r 1  d,le-- Dr iv C  1' 
Ves -teky)o-_, 	Al 	35 c'2-`1 3 	13 E 

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 	 tit   

PHONE NUMBER: Home 5101 '7019 
	

Office  7io  

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 	  

Co)litc- 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



Owner Signature/Date Representing Agent (if any)/date 

001 11 1111,, 
... 

3 

P1014-45//28-15-1-7-19 
3136 Ranger Rd. 
Rezone from R-4 to R-9 
Patricia Hanna 	R-4 

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

  

Request that the above described property be zoned/rezoned 

  

From: 

  

To: 

  

   

For the intended purpose of:  1 1) 
	1G In 	reS i cienf I 	k 0 yyi e_ 

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request* * 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

3 13(o Ra.noter- 	 a_bct_ e i 11--f .5 	35 .2a 
C 	tib 	0 0 	) 0 	Ci 	3 rd ATICS1 /1/4/e4Aerkle_ 
t'S 	't 	13toc-t- 	C.rict-SS 

Property size: 	I 	feet X  1 "IQ 	feet. Acres: 	5 3 7  
V. INFORMATION ATTACHED:  

	 Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

	 Application fees submitted. 

VI. I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

Given under my hand and seal 
this 	2-1  day of  5 pf" 	, 20  1  . 

Notary Public 
My commission expires  	 6   
day of   Dece..,,,,,cv-  	, 20   t H  	. 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



1 

THE COVE AT OVERTON-NORTH 
AMENDED MAP 

6 5 

BROOKHILL FOREST 6TH SECTOR 

BLOCK 6 

6 

5' 

~IINNNIIp IIIR1R '  

subsequent owners. 
Owner: 	Hanna 
Address: 3136 Ranger Rd. 

REYNOLDS SURVEYING CO., INC. 
Surveying — Land Planning 

WOODLAND AVE. PER PLAT — NOT OPEN 

60.00' 

MAP & MEAS. 
O 

O'9, 
OJ 

SET CROSS 
MARK AT 
CORNER 

IPS 60.00' 

MAP & MEAS. 
'Pr 

9 

5
' S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 

IPF 

- 2

- 

5' SETBACK LINE 

LOT 7 
8025 SQ. FT. ± 

LOT 8 
8403 SQ. FT. ± 

5
' S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 

25' SETBACK LINE 

00.0. 	I•

• 

3  
(I/ 

00. col°  

IPS 

SCALE: 1" = 30' 

25' SETBACK LINE 

5' 

60.05' 
MAP & MEAS. 

mQ 

in 

25. 5ENB 	'-4E  

60.82' MEAS. 

61.1 2' "I' 

0 

RANGER ROAD 
i iiii II 

i 

NIS \ -4(  
(  J  2.s- -  0\- 110. 

0- %  
-  4c  0°  ■OD  

....... 

'4

• 

0 71(1k#,Y%  

• .. 	. . 

No. 25657 
PROFESSIONAL 

(HIGHLAND AVE. PER PLAT) 

        

        

        

LEGEND 
IITII IT/ POI 4'  

—( GUY ME 
RETAINING WALL 
CONCRETE 

—X— FENCE 
—OE— OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL 

IPF IRON PIN FOUND 
IPS IRON PIN SET 

 

REVISED 9-8-2014 TO SHOW PROPOSED 
R-9 ZONING SETBACK LINES. 
IMPROVEMENTS REMOVED FOR ZONING 
REVIEW PURPOSES. 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON  COUNTY 

"PROPOSED R-9 ZONING LOT SURVEYS" 

I, Robert Reynolds, a Registered Surveyor, do here by state that this is a true 
and correct plat or map of Lot 	7 & 8  , Block 	6   , of 

GLASS'S 3RD ADDITION TO NEW MERKEL 	, as recorded in Map 
Book 	29   , Page  35 	in the Office of the Judge Of Probate in 

Jefferson  County, Alabama. All parts of this survey and drawing have been 
completed in accordance with the current requirements of the Standards of 
Practice of Surveying in the State of Alabama to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. 

According to my survey this the 
of 	 April 	2014  

   

15 th 	day 
REV. 9-8-2014. SEE NOTE ABOVE 

   

   

NOTE: This survey is not transferable to any additional institution or 

Reg. No. 25657 	
798/22 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



mg  Rout/Mixed Use 	 1.,:mo 

NE  Lam-DM Nim.1 L 	OM  Parks and ()pro Nnnt 

MIN  PlAnned NitxrAl 

13somt) Res4l.weal 

\ la dium-, Dewitt' 14-.1.1rnreal 

-  I figh-Densay R.,.oskrIttal 

Future Land Use 
• J 

*. 	1 

11' -11  11111b 
'IS 

'1 111111 

ti 
I \ 

1 1 
; 
• 

B 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 

Ordinance No. 2539 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2540 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2540 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (residential) 

Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

3125 Blue Lake Drive 
Lot 31, Topfield Subdivision 

Lorraine Hollis, owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 24th day of November 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2540 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2540 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 24th day of November 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2540 
Page 3 

 



Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 9, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-1014-46 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezone Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills O-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3125 Blue Lake Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Lorraine Hollis. 324 Van Buren St. #2 Hollywood, FL 
33019.  

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT: Keith Hager 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant seeks to rezone one lot in Cahaba Heights to 

an O-1 zoning. Office will be one story. Site plan is attached. Proposed development 
appears to meet all building, parking, and buffer requirements for an O-1 zone.  

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

plan for limited mixed use. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Engineering to review access and drainage 
requirements 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 

 

Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



 2

MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Rezoning of 3125 Blue Lake Dr. from 
Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills O-1 For The Purpose Of A New Office Building. Second 
was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 

 

Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



P1014-46//28-27-4-2-3 
3125 Blue Lake Drive 
Rezone from R-1 to 0-1 
Lorraine Hollis R-1 P&Z Application 

Page 4 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working  days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property)  

NAME: 	4-) RA A+ 	/   

ADDRESS:  3(21  uiv „)  L,,e.efo  Stg_e_ef   

4-0 1 louJood,  F 1 3 3 019   

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 

PHONE NUMBER: Home  (g6s—) 6 1 6 - 9 ooR  Office 	  

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 	  

Ke441.- 142,1ar PE. 	  

Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



VI. 	I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

,T  esenting  .11.• Owner Signature/Date t (if any)/date 

...... !?f/0 
- • 

• 

& 	 11 NOTARY 
= 411.  • 411, 

PUBLIC .  co • 

P1014-46//28-27-4-2-3 
3125 Blue Lake Drive 
Rezone from R-1 to 0-1 
Lorraine Hollis R-1 P&Z Application 

Page 5 

III. ACTION REQUESTED  

Request that the above described property be zoned/rezoned 

From: 

To: 	0 - I 

For the intended purpose of: ?rofosa 	'&/;l4L:0-.J\  
tve4A) 	ke,kr Ne-vr.CY 

 

 

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1" for office building) 
* *if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request * * 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 
	

(address, legal, etc.) 

. at, - 17 - 	0'o2  - ;. oru) 

1145 42 	. 2 

feet. Acres: 	0. 6 4 Ai. -V_   

511( I%e L L tv-ktc_ 
1.104 $1, -qf g, t.14 so L 

Property size:  2.23- I  	feet X  (2-1/  

V. INFORMATION ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

	 Application fees submitted. 

Given under my hand and seal 
this   c:Q5   day of  1-1K,./  	,20d_. 

'41,6,ulio -?tact  
Notary Public 

My commission expires   1430 le   
day of  	(3  	,20 	. 

Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



Future Land Use 
LoW-L)crolt .■ RvrktrIttiAl 

73  Nicchum-Ilestnry Rcsnivntril 

Mil  High-tItnsity Rendrnnal 

in t to aural 

Puks and Opal Sr3c, 

1111111  ItortiliNtisod 

sem 	Mixed e.r 

Planncd Mired L'se 

iinrrmgh.. 

\IM 
t), 

i; 

ft( ) ) I- 

• 
fl R.l rr:"...• 	• 

• 
,-•  

r : 	:I 

	

 
I 	,, 	1 ,-: 

I 	/ 

' 	/ 	1-1, 
,..  il 

lAbcrt. 

Pat,. 

/ 

•s 

• 

13 IRNII\c.:: 

A 

) 

0 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 

• 

,/. 

Ordinance No. 2540 - Exhibits



Resolution Number 4655 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4655 
 

 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DEDICATION OF THE STREET 
KNOWN AS DEVEREUX CIRCLE 

 
 WHEREAS, Acton Road POB Development LLC is the developer for Acton Road 

Professional Office Park in Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  This dedication consists of the street 

named “Devereux Circle”; such dedication not to include any improvements other than the 

streets named in this Resolution. 

 WHEREAS, the streets were built according to the Vestavia Hills specifications and the 

development company is presenting them to the City of Vestavia Hills for acceptance complete 

with a guarantee against any defects for a period of one (1) year from date of dedication. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the City hereby accepts the offer of 

dedication made by Acton Road POB Development LLC for Acton Road Professional Office 

Park and are hereby named public streets. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 

      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Kevin B. Kynerd <kbk@bradfordbuilding.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 09, 2014 11:41 AM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: Devereux Circle Dedication Notice

October 9, 2014 
 
 
Honorable Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
City Council, City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL  35216 
 
Dear Mayor Zaragoza, 
 
As Owner of Acton Road POB Development LLC and the developer of the Acton Road Professional Office Park, please 
accept this email as dedication of the public improvements known as Devereux Circle.  The improvements have been 
inspected and recommended for acceptance by the City Engineer. 
 
Please advise if you need any further information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kevin B. Kynerd, Member 
Acton Road POB Development, LLC 
 
 
Kevin B. Kynerd | President | LEED GA  
Bradford Building Co., Inc. 
2151 Old Rocky Ridge Rd. Suite 100 
Birmingham, Alabama 35216 
p: 205.970.4975 f: 205.970.4904 
m: 205.410.5800 
Florida Office: 
2050 CR Hwy. 30A 
Bldg. M-1 Unit 231 
Santa Rosa Beach, FL 32459 
p: 850.660.6021 f: 850-660-2022 
www.bradfordbuilding.com 
 
**PRIVACY NOTICE**  This e‐mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 
U.S.C. §§ 2510‐2521 and is confidential.  If you are not the intended recipient, please reply to the sender that you have 
received the message in error, notify sender and delete the original and all copies. 
  
 

Resolution No. 4655 - Exhibit



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4661 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A DEED FOR DEDICATION OF 
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS AT PATCHWORK FARMS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a deed to 

dedicate sanitary sewer easements in the Patchwork Farms PUD; and 

2. A copy of said deed is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4661 as 

though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4661 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24th day of November, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4661 Exhibit



Resolution No. 4661 Exhibit



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4662 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT A 
FEMA FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE GRANT AND EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT FOR SAID FMA FUNDS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills is hereby authorized to accept 

Federal Funds in the amount of $24,999.99 under the FEMA Flood Mitigation 

Assistance Grant Program (FMA) for the 75% Federal Share of the total $33,333.32 

costs for the proposed City of Vestavia Hills Floodplain Management Plan (Project 

No. FMA-PL-04-AL-2014-003). 

2. That the City Manager is further authorized to execute, on behalf of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, a State-Subgrantee Disaster Assistance Agreement between the State 

of Alabama and the City of Vestavia Hills setting forth the terms and condition of 

receipt and use of the FMA funds for the Floodplain Management Plan Project, a 

copy of which is marked as Exhibit “A” and is attached and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4662 as though written fully therein; and 

3. That the City Manager is hereby appointed to act on the City’s behalf as its local 

agent/designated representative; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4662 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.  

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of December 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



FMA GRANT/FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN  

NOVEMBER 6, 2014 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE GRANT 

The City of Vestavia Hills has been awarded funding from FEMA through the Flood Mitigation 

Assistance (FMA) grant program.  The purpose of the FMA program is to provide funds for 

projects to reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage to buildings that are insured under the 

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) on an annual basis.  The type of grant awarded to the 

City is specifically for planning and preparation of a flood mitigation plan.  This cost share 

associated with this program is a 75% federal share and 25% non-federal share.  The City’s 25% 

non-federal share is planned to be covered through in-kind contributions (staff time, GIS data, 

etc.). 

The consultant fee for assisting with the planning and preparation of the Floodplain 

Management Plan is equal to the 75% federal share ($25,000.00).  No out of pocket expense 

from the City is expected for this project. 

 

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN 

The FMA grant will be used to develop a Floodplain Management Plan for the City.  The plan 

will be the result of a 10-step planning process developed by FEMA.  These are listed below: 

Step 1. Organize 

Step 2. Involve the public 

Step 3. Coordinate 

Step 4. Assess the hazard 

Step 5. Assess the problem 

Step 6. Set goals 

Step 7. Review possible activities 

Step 8. Draft an action plan 

Step 9. Adopt the plan 

Step 10. Implement, evaluate, revise. 

The purpose of the Floodplain Management Plan is to develop an overall strategy of programs, 

projects, and measures that will reduce the adverse impact of the flood hazard on the City.  This 

plan will be specific to the City of Vestavia Hills and the flood hazards within the City.  This plan 

will help the City’s Floodplain Manager and all of the supporting City departments better 

manage flood-related issues by developing a single document that outlines the framework for 

mitigating existing flood hazards and preventing future flood hazards.  The plan will be 

developed with input and review throughout the process by a team comprised of City staff. 

Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



FMA GRANT/FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN  

NOVEMBER 6, 2014 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

In addition to the benefits mentioned above, the development and implementation of a 

Floodplain Management Plan (CRS Activity 510) is eligible for Community Rating System (CRS) 

credit.  The City is considering participation in FEMA’s Community Rating System (CRS) 

program.  This is a voluntary Program for National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) participating 

communities.  The goal of the CRS program is to reduce flood damages to insurable property, 

strengthen and support the insurance aspects of the NFIP, and encourage a comprehensive 

approach to floodplain management.  Participation in the CRS provides premium discounts for 

communities that go beyond the minimum floodplain management requirements. 

The CRS Class is dependent upon the number of activities that a community implements.  Each 

activity implemented earns credits.  The total number of credits a community receives 

determines the CRS Class.  The higher the class, the greater the flood insurance premium 

discount. 

Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4662 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4663 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH SCHOEL CONSULTING 
ENGINEERS FOR CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE FMA 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with Schoel 

Consulting Engineers for consulting services for a FMA Floodplain Management Plan in 

an amount not to exceed $25,000; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4663 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4663 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of December, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

November 10, 2014 

 

 

 

City of Vestavia Hills 

513 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama  35216 

 

Attention: Mr. Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

 

Reference: FMA Floodplain Management Plan 

  Agreement for Consulting Services 

  City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

 

Christopher: 

 

Enclosed is a proposal to provide consulting services for the development of a floodplain 

management plan for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  This plan will follow the requirements 

associated with the FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) funding and the Community Rating 

System (CRS) Activity 510 guidelines.  Lehe Planning, LLC will be working with Schoel on this 

project.  

 

We appreciate the opportunity of working with you.  Please call if you have any questions. 

 

Yours very truly, 

 

WALTER SCHOEL ENGINEERING CO., INC. 

 
William R. Thomas, PE, CFM 

 

 

Enclosure 

 

Cc:  James E. Lehe – Lehe Planning, LLC

Resolution No. 4663 - Exhibit A



 

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

 

BETWEEN 

 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

AND 

 

WALTER SCHOEL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. 

 

FOR 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF A FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

November 10, 2014 

 

 

This AGREEMENT, entered into by and between The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as the 

Client, and Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Consultant, is for Consulting 

Services for development of a floodplain management plan for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  This plan will follow 

the requirements associated with the FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) funding and the Community Rating 

System (CRS) Activity 510 guidelines. 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Schoel Engineering and its subconsultant, Lehe Planning, LLC, will develop a floodplain management plan for the City.  

The City of Vestavia Hills has been awarded funding from FEMA through the Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant 

program.  The purpose of the FMA program is to provide funds for projects to reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage 

to buildings that are insured under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) on an annual basis.  The type of grant 

awarded to the City is specifically for preparation of a flood mitigation plan.  The detailed scope of work is as follows: 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF A FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT PLAN 

The purposes of the floodplain management plan are:  (a) to perform an overall risk assessment of flooding, (b) 

develop a strategy of goals, objectives, and measures to mitigate the flood risks to the City, and (b) prepare a 

program for plan implementation. This plan will be specific to the City of Vestavia Hills and the flood hazards 

within the City.  This plan will help the City’s Floodplain Manager and all of the supporting City departments better 

manage flood-related issues by developing a single document that outlines the framework for mitigating existing 

flood hazards and preventing future flood hazards.  The plan will be developed with input and review throughout the 

process by a team comprised of City staff.  In addition to the benefits mentioned above, the development and 

implementation of a floodplain management plan (CRS Activity 510) is eligible for Community Rating System 

(CRS) credit. 

 

The plan will be the result of a 10-step planning process developed by FEMA and detailed in the 2013 CRS 

Coordinator’s Manual.  These are listed below: 

Step 1. Organize 

Step 2. Involve the public 

Step 3. Coordinate 

Step 4. Assess the hazard 

Step 5. Assess the problem 

Step 6. Set goals 

Step 7. Review possible activities 

Step 8. Draft an action plan 

Step 9. Adopt the plan 

Step 10. Implement, evaluate, revise. 

Resolution No. 4663 - Exhibit A



 

20141107 - Vestavia Hills FMA Floodplain Management Plan.doc 2 
 

The Consultant’s tasks include managing the planning phase of the project and the development of the final 

floodplain management plan.  Also included in this scope is facilitating public meetings, developing and hosting a 

project website, assisting with the grant management, assisting with the identification and documentation of in-kind 

services to meet the required Federal match, and aiding with FEMA approval and City adoption.   

 

The final plan will be a supporting resource for the City’s participation in the CRS Program of the NFIP.  The 

Consultant will help guide the City with the CRS Program application procedures.  Should the City require 

additional assistance with CRS program management and implementation, this will be considered additional work 

and a separate agreement will be provided. 

 

All work shall be deemed completed upon the City’s adoption of the plan, following FEMA approval. 

 

Lump Sum Fee: $ 25,000 (inclusive of subconsultant) 

 

 

PAYMENT TERMS 

The Consultant will bill the Client monthly based on the following payment schedule:  20% of the Lump Sum Fee for the 

first month, 10% of the Lump Sum Fee following FEMA approval, and the remaining balance paid in seven (7) equal 

monthly payments.  Payments are due upon receipt.  The Client's obligation to pay for services is in no way dependent 

upon the Client's ability to obtain financing, obtain approval from any governmental or regulatory agencies, real estate 

closing, receipt of payment from other parties, or upon successful completion of the project.  If payment is not received 

within thirty (30) days from date of invoice, the amounts may include a late charge or 1½ % per month, calculated from 

said thirtieth (30th) day.  Should Consultant incur attorney’s fees for collection of payment, the amount owed to 

Consultant shall include any and all said fees.  Failure to make payment within sixty (60) days shall constitute a waiver of 

the right to dispute the accuracy and appropriateness of the invoice.  In addition, Consultant reserves the right to suspend 

services under this Agreement until such time as payment is made in full for all amounts due for services rendered and 

expenses incurred has been received. 

 

 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) Services performed under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill 

exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions.  Plans, specifications, and 

submittals will be prepared in accordance with the written standards of the governing authorities having jurisdiction. 

Any extraordinary requirements for approvals will be considered additional services.  No other warranty, expressed 

or implied, is made. Nothing in this agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be construed to create, a fiduciary 

duty owed by either party to the other party. 

 

2) The figures given above and in the body of this Agreement are based on the Scope of Work as described herein.  If 

the above outlined Scope of Services is changed, or if there are other services that may be requested by the Client, 

these additional services will also be performed at the above unit rates, or a revised fee will be negotiated to the 

satisfaction of both the Client and Consultant at that time.  The Consultant reserves the right to adjust these unit rates 

for inflation costs on a one-year interval from the date of this proposal. 

 

3) All claims, disputes, and other matters in controversy between Consultant and Client arising out of or in any way 

related to this agreement (other than as a result of Client’s failure to pay amounts due hereunder) will be submitted to 

mediation before, and as a condition precedent to, other remedies provided by law.  Mediation shall be held in the 

county where the project is located, and if the parties cannot agree on a mediator then one shall be appointed by the 

American Arbitration Association (AAA). Parties agree to split cost of mediation 50-50. 

 

4) Services not expressly set forth in writing as basic or additional services and listed in the proposal to this Agreement 

are excluded from the scope of the Consultant's services, and the Consultant assumes no duty to the Client to perform 

such services. 

 

Resolution No. 4663 - Exhibit A



 

20141107 - Vestavia Hills FMA Floodplain Management Plan.doc 3 
 

5) Client, at its expense, will provide the Consultant with all required site information, existing plans, reports, studies, 

project schedules and similar information that is contained in Client’s files.  The Consultant may rely on the 

information provided by the Client without verification.  The Client shall participate with the Consultant by 

providing all information and criteria in a timely manner, review documents and make decisions on project 

alternatives to the extent necessary to allow the Consultant to perform the scope of work within established 

schedules. 

 

6) Consultant shall secure and maintain insurance as required by law or statutory requirements which will protect him 

from claims under the workers compensation acts and from claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage that 

may arise from the performance of his services under and pursuant to this Agreement.  Certificates of such coverage 

will be provided to Client upon request. 

 

7) All reports, plans, documents, or other materials resulting from the Consultant's efforts shall remain the property of 

the Consultant and are intended solely for the purpose of this Agreement.  Any reuse by Client for purposes outside 

of this Agreement or any failure to follow Consultant's recommendations without Consultant's written permission 

shall be at the user’s sole risk. 

 

8) This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial 

failure to perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement by the other party through no fault of the 

terminating party.  If this Agreement is terminated, it is agreed that Consultant shall be paid for total charges for 

labor performed to the termination notice date, plus reimbursable charges. 

 

9) Neither party to this Agreement will be liable to the other party for delays in performing the services, nor for the 

direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, that may result from labor strikes, riots, war, acts of governmental 

authorities, extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 

control of either party. 

 

10) The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not be deemed to affect the validity of any other 

provision.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, the parties agree that the remaining 

provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect. 

 

11) The Consultant shall not be responsible for construction site safety or construction procedures, nor will the 

Consultant be responsible for the quality of the work performed by the contractor or other consultants. 

 

12) Consultant may, at Client's request and for Client's convenience, provide documents in electronic format.  Data, 

words, graphical representations, and drawings that are stored on electronic media or which are transmitted 

electronically, may be subject to uncontrollable alteration.  The printed, signed and sealed hard copy is the actual 

professional instrument of service.  In the event of a discrepancy between the electronic document and the hardcopy 

document, the hardcopy document will prevail. 

 

 

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 

 

SUBMITTED:      ACCEPTED: 

 

Consultant: Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc. Client: City of Vestavia Hills 

Signature:     Signature:        

Name:   William R. Thomas    Name:         

Title:   Senior Environmental Project Manager  Title:         

Date:   November 10, 2014    Date:         

 

Resolution No. 4663 - Exhibit A



 

20141107 - Vestavia Hills FMA Floodplain Management Plan.doc 4 
 

Please print or type the following information for the individual, firm or corporation responsible for payment. 
 

Company:              

Client or Client's authorized representative:          

Street Address:              

City, State, Zip:              

Phone Number:       Fax Number:        

Email Address:              

Client's Project Number:    Client's Purchase Order Number:     

Resolution No. 4663 - Exhibit A


	2014_1124CC_A
	proclamation 2014 small business saturday
	2014_1110CC_M
	Ordinance 2524-A
	Ordinance 2546
	Ordinance 2541
	Ordinance 2547
	Ordinance 2542
	Ordinance 2548
	Ordinance 2543
	Ordinance 2539
	Ordinance 2540
	Resolution 4655
	Resolution 4661
	Resolution 4662
	Resolution 4663



